Meeting Pack
Derry City and Strabane District Council
Dear Member of Planning Committee – Local Development Plan (LDP)
You are hereby summoned to attend the monthly meeting of the Planning Committee –
LDP to be held in the Council Chamber, Derry Road, Strabane on Monday 16 January 2017
at 4.00pm.
Yours faithfully

John Kelpie
Chief Executive
AGENDA
1

Notice and Summons for Meeting

2

Members Attendance and Apologies

3

Declarations of Members' Interests

Open for Decision
4

Deputations (none)

5

Chairperson's Business

6

Confirmation of the Open Minutes of the Planning Committee (LDP) held on
Monday 19 September 2016 (Pages 1 - 12)

7

Matters Arising

8

Overview of LDP Process and Stage towards Delivery (Pages 13 - 16)

9

Housing in the Settlement Hierarchy - Options for POP (Pages 17 - 20)

10

Economic Development and LDP - Options for POP (Pages 21 - 24)

12 January 2017

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Derry City and Strabane District Council
Open Minutes of Planning Committee (LDP) held in the Council Chamber,
Council Offices, Derry Road, Strabane on Monday 19 September 2016 at
4.00pm.
_______________________
Present:- Councillor Boyle (Chairperson); Aldermen Bresland, M Hamilton, and
Kerrigan; Councillors Dobbins, Gardiner, Hassan, Hastings, Jackson, D Kelly,
McGuire and R McHugh.
Non Members of Committee:- Alderman Hussey.
In Attendance:- Principal Planning Officer (Mr P McCaughey), Senior Planning
Officer (Mr J McNee) Planning Officers: (Ms N Carr and Ms P McAteer),
Democratic Customer Services Officer (Mrs S Maxwell), Committee Services
Assistant (Mrs M Doherty).
______________________________

PLDP17/16 Notice and Summons of Meeting
The Principal Planning Officer read the Notice and Summons for the
Meeting.
PLDP18/16 Apologies
Apologies for absence were received from Alderman Thompson and
Councillors Logue and R McHugh
PLDP19/16 Declarations of Members’ Interest
There were no Declarations of Members Interest
Open for Decision
PLDP20/16 Deputations (none)
There were no deputations on this occasion.
PLDP21/16 Chairperson’s Business

Page 1

2

The Chair advised Members that the Principal Planning Officer had a
few items that he wished to raise under Chairperson’s Business:
The Forthcoming Planning (LDP) Workshop Dates:
The Principal Planning Officer outlined the following detail in relation to
the forthcoming workshops and asked Members to note the dates in
their diaries:


Workshop 5 – is unchanged, at 2pm on Monday 26 September,
at the Green Room, Guildhall. (P&CSP has been brought
forward). PAC will present to this Meeting – on Planning Appeals
and on the LDP, so it is particularly important that Members of
the Planning Committee attend.



Workshop 6 – unchanged, on Monday 17 October at 2pm,
Strabane



Workshop 7 – will be brought forward by 1 week to Monday 24
October at 2pm in Derry. Please amend you diaries accordingly.

LDP Training Events
The Principal Planning Officer outlined to Members the following
training events and sought nominations for attendance at both events.


Starting the Local Development Plan Process - Half-day course
9am – 1.30pm, Belfast, 26 October.
The Committee
Recommended



that Councilors Boyle and McGuire
attend the above event.

LDP Soundness (Provisional) - Half-day course 10.30am –
1.30pm, Newtownabbey 25 November.
The Committee
Recommended

that Councillor Boyle attend the
above event.

Workshop Papers at Appendices 2-7 (Items 9-12)
The Principal Planning Officer advised that appendices 2-7
incorporated in agenda items 9-12 are works-in-progress and will be
published as part of the Evidence Base along with the Preferred
Options Paper in accordance with Regulation 10(2) of the Planning
(Local Development Plan) Regulations (NI) 2015. Therefore, they will

Page 2

3

not been placed on the public website now, until after they have been
updated and finalised.
PLDP22/16 Confirmation of the Open Minutes of the Planning Committee
(LDP) held on Monday 16 May 2016.
The Open Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 May 2016 (PLDP4/16PLDP16/16) were confirmed and signed by the Chairman.
PLDP23/16 Matters Arising
PLDP9/16 Regional Development Strategy 2035 (RDS) – Revised
Housing Growth Indicators (HGIs) (REF P46/16)
The Principal Planning Officer sought clarification from Members in
relation to the recommendation recorded at the previous meeting in
relation to the above report. Where it was recommended that the
invitation to the Minister for Regional Development would be issued by
Officers and when an agreed date for the meeting was confirmed that
Elected Members would be in attendance. Members confirmed that
this was an accurate interpretation of the proposed course of action.
PLDP11/16 Overview of LDP Process and Structures for Delivery
The Principal Planning Officer brought to Members attention
recommendation (ii) from the last meeting in relation to the above
report. He advised that nominations and substitute nominations for
the Membership of the LDP steering group were still to be agreed.
The following nominations and substitute nominations were dully
noted:
 The Chair of the Planning Committee Councillor Boyle.
 SDLP – Councillor Hastings, substitute Councillor Dobbins.
 Sinn Fein – Councillor McGuire, substitute Councillor Hassan.
 UUP – Alderman M Hamilton, substitute Alderman Hussey
(clarification to be sought if Members who are not on the
Planning Committee can be substitutes).
 DUP – Alderman Kerrigan, substitute Alderman Bresland.
PLDP24/16 Overview of LDP Process, Work Plan & Stage towards Delivery
The Principal Planning Officer advised that the purpose of the above
paper was to remind Members about the process of preparing the new

Page 3

4

Local Development Plan 2030 (LDP) for Derry City and Strabane District,
and particularly to update Members on the progress made to-date and
hence on the current stage we are at towards the ongoing delivery of
the Plan preparation.
The Principal Planning Officer advised of the hard copy documents
available for Members to view. He stressed the important work that
Officers and Members have completed and that he was looking
forward to working with Members on the work plan.
The Committee
Recommended

Council note the contents of the paper,
agreeing to proceed with the decisionmaking process and broad timescales as
set out in the work plan.

PLDP25/16 LDP Context, Population & Growth Strategy – Options for POP
The Senior Planning Officers advised that the purpose of the above
paper was to present to Members a summary of the salient issues,
discussed at the LDP Workshops or supplied by Members in
subsequent responses, which dealt with the respective LDP topics. The
paper also sought Members approval as to how best to progress these
topics towards the Preferred Options Paper (POP) stage of the LDP in
Spring next year.
A non-committee Member of the UUP grouping referred to point 3.1 in
the paper which indicated that there would be no constraints and how
this is contradicted at point 3.7 of the paper which illustrates that there
will be constraints. He stated that he was in agreement that the City
would have Principal City status in the North West and Strabane would
be identified as a main hub, however he had difficulties about the lack
of recognition for the rural areas of the City and District that were
equally a valid part of the LDP. He further referred to 3.8 of the report
and stressed that all references to BREXIT have been about the
challenges and that no account has been taken of the opportunities
that it can present and he felt that this should be noted.
In response the Principal Planning Officer, referred to the
acknowledgment within the paper of the City as Principal City and
Strabane as a main hub, but he stressed that this does not under-value

Page 4

5

or not fail to take account of the important role villages and vibrant
rural areas play in the LDP.
A Member of the Sinn Fein grouping raised his concerns about the
level of housing growth required to the period 2030. He stressed that
the reference in the paper to 5,000 homes needed for the population
to the period 2030, in his opinion was understated. He referred to the
current housing crisis in the City, were it has been indicated that 4,000
homes are currently needed to meet the demand and therefore the
prediction of 5,000 has to be inaccurate. He also sought clarification
that if once the LDP has been finalised, will it be monitored and what
opportunities exist for it to be reviewed.
In response, the Senior Planning Officer advised that early indications
of statistical findings were that the population growth for the area
would increase by 10,000. These figures are constantly updated and
that a recent population growth estimate of 2,000 has been deemed
more realistic and on that basis the figure of 5,000 homes has been
reached. The Principal Planning Officer referred to the housing growth
indicator arrived at by statistician of 5,800 homes needed for the area
up to 2030. He advised that it has been highlighted that this does not
match up with the Housing Executive’s stated housing need. He stated
that this has been acknowledged by officials and this will be monitored
and should the case arise, officials will put forward a case on the basis
that the housing growth figure being projected is not realistic. He
further clarified that the plan when finalised will be in existence to 2030
however it will be annual monitored with a review being carried out
every 5 year period so there will be an opportunity to review and
update.
A Member of the SDLP grouping in concurring with the previous
speaker, raised his concerns at the predicted housing growth
estimation. He maintained that to build what is currently needed,
would leave only 1,000 homes required for the duration of the plan. He
acknowledged that the population growth has slowed down however
he felt what was being estimated would be insufficient. He stated that
NISRA need to provide a realistic population growth for the area and
then on that basis, an informed decision on housing growth indicators
can be made.
In response, the Principal Planning Officer advised that the figure of
population growth has been arrived at by NISRA and that it is
constantly being reviewed. He stated that this statistical information

Page 5

6

takes into account the latest trends in terms of birth rates, families,
mortality rates and immigration. He stated that immigration is a
significant factor in these figures with the projected immigration level
in boom times being much higher than the latest figures which will
impact on the population growth indicators. He added that this is not
a cap or target but an indicator to use in addressing identified need.
Council have their own statistician as part of the Community Planning
team and are therefore in the position to make a good robust case if
needed to achieve a better allocation for this area. As an indicator this
is not an area of concern for Officers.
A Member of the Sinn Fein grouping stated that he was in agreement
with previous comments made by the UUP non-committee Member in
relation to the need for acknowledgment of the rural areas of the City
and District however he could not concur with the remarks made in
relation to the opportunities that BREXIT will present. He stressed that
it is important the LDP takes account of the North West Gateway and it
linkages with Donegal and infrastructure opportunities. He stated that
it would be short sighted of Council not to take account of our
neighbours.
In response, the Principal Planning Officer advised that rural proofing is
a serious component of drafting the LDP. He referred to the comments
made in relation to BREXIT and that the uncertainty that will bring. He
stated that it may be 2-3 years before a clear picture of what impact
BEXIT will have. This uncertainty assists Officers to argue cases in terms
of the number of homes needed and employment opportunities.
Another Member of the Sinn Fein grouping raised his concerns on the
lack of rural inclusion in the paper. He stated that he was not
encouraged by what was being presented. He referred to the transfer
of planning powers to Council and the misleading information about
the development of the LDP. He referred to the workshops where
promises were made about developing rural areas and that the policy
and statement were to act as guidance in the drafting of Council
policies for the implementation of the LDP. He stated that in his
opinion, it was more of the same as before wherein DOE policy was
automatically implemented in Council.
In response, the Principal Planning Officer noted the concerns of the
Member. He stated that the legislation and policy documents provided
have to be taken account of, but by no way means Council will be a

Page 6

7

slave to them. He stated that in drafting any policy if Council can justify
the soundness of a case for the policy, then it can be put forward.
The same Member stressed that the paper presented does not give
that reassurance and that it needed to be included in the paper.
The Principal Planning Officer acknowledged the Members comments
and advised the policy context had to be acknowledged. He stated
that all policies will be subject to an EQIA appraisal and sustainability
appraisal. He advised that this is preliminary process and that further
workshops will make decisions on how to progress the LDP in terms of
the entire District inclusive of the City, town and all rural areas.
A Member of the SDLP in supporting the previous comments stated
that it is important that we have inclusion of all the entire Council area
in the narrative. He added that the LDP will provide a long term vison
and it would be important that the Council does not place any undue
restrictions at this stage.
Another Member of the SDLP grouping stated that she was
disappointed at the figures presented. She stressed that this plan when
produced, will be the foundation for attracting extra investment into
the Council area. She felt that with the strives being made in
education, with expansion of the Magee Campus, that she would hope
that 10,000 for population growth was an underestimation. She stated
that the Council area should be seen as an economic hub of the North
West. She felt that the Plan should show more optimism for the area
and be positive.
A Member of the DUP grouping also raised his concern at the lack of
rural inclusion in the paper being presented. He stated that this is
Council’s opportunity to get it right and that on behalf of the
constituents that he represents, rural opportunities are of extreme
importance. He added that the figures presented are not adding up
and that this needs to be looked at, Officers need to work at it to get it
right first time round.
A Member of the Sinn Fein grouping concurred with the remarks of
Members in the Chamber. He acknowledged that the regulations have
a huge impact on the development of the LDP but he stressed that we
need to take account of all the issues and ensure these are adequately
addressed in the policy before we move on. He made reference to 92
pages of legislation, regulation and policy statements that exist and

Page 7

8

stated that if Council does not act now, in his opinion Council will have
no room for manoeuvre and will be constrained.
A lengthy discussion ensued and a Member of the Sinn Fein grouping
proposed that the paper be deferred to allow Officers more time to
work up the paper incorporating Members concerns. This was
seconded by another Member of the Sinn Fein grouping.
The Committee
Recommended

that the above Paper be deferred to
allow officer time to work up the paper
incorporating Members comments.

PLDP26/16 Built Environment and LDP – Options for POP
The Planning Officer advised that the purpose of this paper is to
present a summary of the salient issues, discussed at the LDP
workshops or supplied by Members in subsequent responses, which
dealt with the respective LDP topics. The paper also sought Members
agreement as to how best to progress these topics towards the
Preferred Options Paper (POP) stage of the LDP in Spring Next Year.
The Committee
Recommended

that (i) the contents of this paper as part
of the Council’s ‘evidence base’ and SA
‘environmental baseline’ are noted; and
(ii) Members agree that Planning
Officials proceed to develop options in
line with this paper and consultation with
key consultees/stakeholders, especially
the Historic Environment Division (HED,
of DFC). These options can be firmed up
as part of the subsequent LDP preferred
Options stage.

PLDP27/6

Natural Environment, Countryside Assessment and LDP – Options
for Preferred Options Paper
The Planning Officer advised that the purpose of the above paper was
to present a summary of the salient issues, discussed at the LDP
workshop or supplied by Members in subsequent responses, which
dealt with the respective LDP topics. The paper also sought Members

Page 8

9

agreement as to how best to progress these topics towards the
Preferred Options Paper stage of the LDP in spring next year.
The Planning Officer then proceeded to take Members through the
contents of the paper, a copy of which had been provided previously to
Members.
A Member of SDLP grouping queried if the designation of a green belt
would take place prior to confirmation of a new settlement plan. He
highlighted that there was now an opportunity to assess the location of
residential and industrial settlements alongside green belts and ensure
that there were adequate distances between each to prevent any
opposition from residential occupants in the future.
A non-committee Member from the UUP grouping queried whether
the designated green belt would be adequate for both the housing and
industrial needs of a developing city. He stressed that it should not
impede future development both in the City and in satellite areas.
A Member of the Sinn Fein grouping in acknowledging the availability
of guidance notes for development in Areas of Outstanding Beauty
(AONB), highlighted his concerns at the absence of a management plan
for the Sperrin’s AONB. He queried how this matter would be taken
forward.
In responding to Members comments, the Principal Planning Officer
clarified that the paper set out what was acknowledged as the most
important natural heritage designations throughout the District. He
advised that whilst Planning has a role to protect these designations,
there was no intention to apply unwarranted strict policies or
restrictions. He clarified that the report was provided for information
purposes at this stage.
He further explained that the process will review existing designations,
assess the need for any further designations and will involve further
studies and consultation with relevant bodies. Following which, findings
and recommendations will be brought back to Committee. He
confirmed that consideration will be given to providing design
guidelines for the Sperrins AONB.
The Committee
Recommended

that (i) the contents of this paper as part
of the Council’s ‘evidence base’ and SA
‘environmental baseline’ are noted; and

Page 9

10

(ii) Members agree that Planning
Officials proceed to develop options in
line with this paper and in consultation
with key consultees and stakeholders,
especially the NI Environment Agency
(NIEA, of DAERA).

PLDP28/16 Policy Review – Options for LDP Preferred Options Paper
The Principal Planning Officer stated that the purpose of this report was
to present a summary of the salient issues, discussed at the LDP
workshops or supplied by Members in subsequent responses, which
dealt with the respective LDP topics. The paper also sought agreement
from Members as to how best to progress these topics towards the
Preferred Options Paper stage of the LDP in the spring next year.
He explained that it is this early stage of the process - the Plan Strategy
Stage, wherein options relating to the development of policies will be
considered. He advised that all Planning Policy Statements (PPS’s) will
cease to have effect once the Plan Strategy is adopted. He stated that
the workshops focused on the PPS’s and policies which should initially
be reviewed. He stressed that whilst all policies would be open to
review, this would involve a significant piece of work and would be
extremely resource intensive. For this reason, the recommendation of
officials was to focus on no. 5 PPS’s i.e. PPS4 – Economic Development,
PPS7 – Quality Residential Environments, PPS16 – Tourism, PPS18 –
Renewable Energy and PPS21 – Development in the Countryside.
A Member of the Sinn Fein grouping whilst acknowledging that this
task involved a significant piece of work; stressed the importance of the
task.
A further Member of the Sinn Fein grouping welcomed the report
however raised his concerns at the interpretation of the input from
consultees. He referred to the example wherein the consultation input
from the NI Tourism Board in March 2015, was that the Strabane
District Council had under-capacity in terms of its tourism provision;
however the same body subsequently stated in April 2015 that the
Derry and Strabane District Council area had 40% over capacity. He
stressed that accommodation provision is required across the entire
district and there should not be a tendency to direct people to
accommodation providers in the City.

Page 10

11

The Committee
Recommended

(ii)

that Members (i) accept the contents of
this paper as part of the Council’s LDP
‘evidence base’; and
agrees that Planning Officials proceed to
consultation with key consultees and
stakeholders regarding the identification
of the various policies which require
review, with resultant policy options.
These options or policy directions can
then be firmed up and reported to and
discussed with Members as part of the
subsequent LDP Preferred Options
stage.

PLDP29/16 Consultation from Donegal County Council on AA Screening & SEA
Preliminary Scoping Report on the Draft Co. Donegal Development
Plan
The Senior Planning Officer stated that the purpose of the above report
was to appraise Members that Planning Officials had recently received
consultations from Donegal County Council (CDDP) on (a) a Screening
Report (in relation to Appropriate Assessment – AA) and (b) a
Preliminary Scoping Report (in relation to Strategic Environment
Assessment – SEA). Both reports are associated with a review of the
current Co. Donegal Development Plan 2012-2018 and preparations for
a new Co. Donegal Development Plan 2018 – 2024. He highlighted that
these reports will determine whether or the CDDP will have likely
significant impacts upon Natura 2000 sites (AA) or on the environment
in general (SEA).
He advised that on the basis of a preliminary screening assessment,
Donegal County Council have determined that they cannot conclude
that there will be no significant effects on Natura 2000 sites and
accordingly the draft CDDP will need to undertake a Stage 2
Appropriate Assessment. The Derry City and Strabane District Council’s
Planning officials have consulted with Shared Environmental Services
and concur with this standard AA determination.
The Senior Planning Officer proceeded to take the Members through
the contents of the paper, a copy of which had been provided
previously to Members.

Page 11

12

The Committee
Recommended

that Members (i) note the contents of the
report; and
(ii) agrees that the Council response be
issued to Donegal County Council
planning officials.

The Meeting went into Confidential Business.
The Meeting ended at 5.50pm.

Page 12

Agenda Item 8
Title of Report:

Officer Presenting:

Overview of LDP Process and Stage towards
Delivery

Principal Planning Officer

1 Purpose of Report/Recommendations
1.1 The purpose of this Paper is to remind Members about the process of preparing the
new Local Development Plan 2030 (LDP) for Derry City and Strabane District, and
particularly to update Members on the progress made to-date and hence on the
current stage we are at towards the ongoing delivery of the Plan preparation.
2 Background
2.1 Members will recall the Papers for Items 7 - 9 of the initial meeting of the Planning
(LDP) Committee on 16th May 2016. Item 7 summarised the main component
elements involved in preparing the new Local Development Plan 2030 (LDP) for
Derry City and Strabane District, as well as setting out the structures to be
established to deliver the Plan. At Item 8, Members considered and agreed a LDP
Workplan, the immediate programme of Discussion Papers / Workshops and
Committees up to Preferred Options Paper (POP) Stage in the Spring of 2017, in line
with the formal LDP Timetable (Item 9).
2.2 The second meeting of the Planning (LDP) Committee on 19th September 2016, Item
8, gave an update on the progress made to that time, including:


the publication of the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) and LDP
Timetable in July 2016



the first Committee meeting held on 16th May 2016



nominations were made to the LDP Project Management Board, as well as the
LDP Consultee Team



three successful Workshops had been held in June and July, considering 9
Papers, attended by an average of 11 Councillors



negotiations had been held with Shared Environmental Services (SES) to
undertake the integrated SA / SEA process

3 Key Issues
3.1 Members will be aware that further considerable progress has been made in recent
months, in accordance with the Workplan.

Page 13

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Since September 2016, the LDP team has prepared and presented a further 12
Papers on the main Planning topics, through 5 Member Workshops. For each topic,
this has set out good baseline information on legal requirements, existing policies,
the current situation in this District and hence the issues and potential options for
inclusion in the new LDP. This has been a significant achievement, key for capacitybuilding on the technical aspects of Planning, as well as increasing our
understanding of these Planning issues and the LDP process – from both officers’
and members’ perspectives. Feedback has been positive about the Workshops and a
reasonably balanced attendance achieved, as follows:


Workshop 4, 12th September, Housing in Settlement Hierarchy, 13 Councillors



Workshop 5, 26th September, Economic Development, City / Town Centres and
Retailing, 16 Councillors



Workshop 6, 17th October, Urban Design / Townscape and Transport /
Movement, 12 Councillors



Workshop 7, 24th October, Open Space / Recreation, Tourism and Renewable
Energy, 16 Councillors



Workshop 9, 12th December, Public Utilities, Community Infrastructure, Coastal
Development, Waste Management and Minerals, 10 Councillors

Latterly, Planning officials have been widening the involvement and input, by
opening the topic-based debate to the public on an informal basis through the
Council’s website and social media via the IMPROVE project. We have also gone
out to the Consultation Bodies, including all the central government departments
and our adjoining Councils, to get their input on the various subject areas.
We will now be writing and meeting with the many sectoral Stakeholder groups - of
organizations who have front-line interest, experience and aspirations for the LDP
for our District. Within the Council, Planning officials will continue to liaise with the
other departments, including Economic Development, Biodiversity, Recreation and
the Community Plan teams, in order to utilize their inputs and to ensure coordination of projects and Council priorities. Planning officials also need to
undertake the first stage reports on Sustainability Appraisal (SA/SEA) as well as
Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) and Rural Proofing (RP).
This input from the Consultees and Stakeholders will be added to the existing and
ongoing planning reports, so that the officials and elected members can and discuss
and decide during Spring 2017 on the Preferred Options for our LDP. This will be
timely, as the Council finalises and launches the Community Plan – which is to be
fed into the LDP.

Page 14

3.6

3.7

The Chief Executive/Director will shortly be convening a meeting of the LDP Project
Management Board to decide on the details of the project management, resourcing
and timetabling of the LDP, especially towards the forthcoming publication of the
Preferred Options Paper (POP) and subsequent Plan Strategy (PS). Following this
Board meeting, Members will be advised of the programme of Workshops and
Committee Meetings that are required over the coming months in order to produce
and publish the POP.
This Committee meeting is a further stage in the Plan-making process as set out in
the Workplan. The meeting summarises the Discussion Papers from two of the
above-mentioned Workshops, combines feedback from the wider body of
Councillors and points towards the identification of Options. The Committee is
asked to make preliminary decisions on the proposed Options, regarding these
aspects, that the LDP is considering, as we proceed towards further evidence
gathering, consultee / stakeholder input and then further Committee meetings (plus
full Council approval) to finally decide on the LDP Preferred Options over the
coming months.

4 Financial, Equality, Legal, HR, Improvement and Other Implications
4.1 There are no financial, equality, legal, HR, Improvement or other implications arising
from this report, beyond those already outlined.
5 Recommendations
5.1 Members are requested to note the contents of this Paper, agreeing to proceed
with the decision-making process and broad timescales as set out in the Workplan.
Background Papers
None

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Title of Report: Housing in the Settlement
Hierarchy – Options for LDP Preferred
Options Paper (POP)

Officer Presenting:
Principal Planning Officer

1 Purpose of Report/Recommendations
1.1 The purpose of this Paper is to present a summary of the salient issues, discussed at
the LDP Workshop that dealt with this LDP Topic. The Paper also seeks agreement
from Members as to how best to progress these Topics towards the Preferred
Options Paper (POP) stage of the LDP in early 2017.
2 Background
2.1 As previously explained, the various technical aspects of Planning which comprise
the LDP are each being considered systematically, each marked by the series of
councillor Workshops and meetings of this Planning Committee. In accordance with
the Workplan, this Committee meeting is a further stage in that Plan-making
process. The meeting summarises the Discussion Paper from the earlier Workshop,
combines feedback from the wider body of Councillors and points towards the
identification of Options. The Committee is asked to make preliminary decisions on
the proposed Options, regarding these aspects, that the LDP is considering, as we
proceed towards further evidence gathering, consultee and stakeholder input and
then further Committee meetings (plus full Council approval) to finally decide on
the LDP Preferred Options, to be published during 2017.
3 Key Issues
3.1 The Workshop and Discussion Paper at Appendix 1 (with some updated statistics,
etc.) has reviewed the regional policies which guide the amount and type of housing
to be allocated and delivered in the LDP. In particular, the Council must take
account of the settlement hierarchy and Housing Growth Indicators (HGIs, which the
Council’s Planning Committee, officials and statistician continue to take issue with)
in the Regional Development Strategy (RDS 2035) and the process of allocating
housing land set out in the Strategic Planning Policy Statement for NI (SPPS) and
PPS 12: Housing in Settlements (and PPS 21: Countryside), as well as the good
design guidance stipulated in PPS 7 ‘Quality Residential Environments’. The existing
Derry Area Plan 2011 and Strabane Area Plan 2001 set out the current settlement
limits and significant amounts of extant unzoned and zoned land (500 hectares
remaining) suitable for housing. The Paper also looks towards the higher level
aspirations for providing an adequate supply of good quality housing for the
District’s population, as set out in the emerging Community Plan for the District.

Page 17

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Paper considers the population projections for the District up to 2030 and
hence the need for additional households and new houses over this LDP period.
This is then compared against recent building rates, the RDS HGIs and the existing
land supply. This is supplemented with statistics from the NIHE on the type and
tenure of housing in the District, especially the current estimates of need for social
and affordable housing.
In terms of preparing the Local Development Plan, the key instruments will be a) the
land allocations and b) the policies. Accordingly, the Paper begins to consider how
much housing land we will actually provide to meet the District’s needs up to 2030
and then how that land should be strategically allocated across the settlement
hierarchy – of Derry city, Strabane town, the local towns, the villages, small
settlements and also the open countryside. The accompanying policies in the LDP
will then determine the amount and type of housing that can ultimately be
delivered (subject to separate policy-review papers).
The Member’s feedback at the Workshop included:
















4

It was recognised that given the existing commitments, and need levels, the
Council’s scope seems to be limited.
Need to standardise and define our hierarchy of settlements across the District.
How do the HGI figure add up against the social housing figures?
What Brownfield sites remain and how do these sites tie in with roads and
traffic? Mapping Exercise to be done and TNI to be consulted e.g. Limavady
Road and Northland Road (as well other congested areas such as Buncrana and
Culmore Roads). Many brownfield sites are more suitable for uses other than
housing.
We also need greenfield sites – to realistically accommodate the bulk of our
housing.
There should be no more cramming of social housing.
Need balanced and mixed communities, especially concern at some larger
housing sites
Urban cramming is an issue generally and can impact on residential character.
Design is important in terms of community infrastructure e.g. schools, shops.
Both urban and rural areas have difficulties. Distinguish between ‘outer rural’
and ‘inner rural‘ areas. NIHE Latent Demand studies needed for rural
settlements.
Rural areas need to be sustainable and vibrant. ‘Sustainability’ includes
‘providing a choice’ for rural dwellers. Concern about rural de-population.
Policy is constrained in the rural areas. It has discouraged rural applications –
even if the refusal rate is low. It needs relaxed, issues such as clustering and
permission on farms.
More sites for travellers needed. Statistics may not be a reliable picture.

Financial, Equality, Legal, HR, Improvement and Other Implications

Page 18

4.1

There are no financial, equality, legal, HR, Improvement or other implications arising
from this report, beyond those already outlined.

5 Recommendations
5.1 Members are requested to accept the contents of this Paper as part of the Council's
'evidence base' and SA 'environmental baseline'.
5.2 Members are also asked to agree that Planning officials proceed to develop options
in line with this Paper and in consultation with key consultees and stakeholders,
including NIHE and the various Housing Associations. The updated Housing
Monitor will also assist in ensuring that these options can then be firmed up as part
of the subsequent LDP Preferred Options stage.

Background Papers
Appendix 1 – ‘Housing in the Settlement Hierarchy’ Discussion Paper, 12th
September 2016 (as updated)

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Title of Report: Economic Development –
Options for LDP Preferred Options Paper
(POP)

Officer Presenting:
Senior Planning Officer

1 Purpose of Report/Recommendations
1.1 The purpose of this Paper is to present a summary of the salient issues, discussed at
the LDP Workshop that dealt with this LDP Topics. The Paper also seeks agreement
from Members as to how best to progress these Topics towards the Preferred
Options Paper (POP) stage of the LDP in early 2017.
2 Background
2.1 As previously explained, the various technical aspects of Planning which comprise
the LDP are each being considered systematically, each marked by the series of
councillor Workshops and meetings of this Planning Committee. In accordance with
the Workplan, this Committee meeting is a further stage in that Plan-making
process. The meeting summarises the Discussion Paper from the earlier Workshop,
combines feedback from the wider body of Councillors and points towards the
identification of Options. The Committee is asked to make preliminary decisions on
the proposed Options, regarding these aspects, that the LDP is considering, as we
proceed towards further evidence gathering, consultee and stakeholder input and
then further Committee meetings (plus full Council approval) to finally decide on
the LDP Preferred Options, to be published during 2017.
3 Key Issues
3.1 The Workshop enabled Member feedback based on the Discussion Paper attached
at Appendix 2 (with some updated statistics, etc.). The Discussion Paper provided a
review of the relevant legislation / policy and how economic development should
be considered in the LDP; a summary of employment and economic development in
the District; plus a consideration of how these can affect our LDP designations,
zonings, proposals and policies.
3.2 Members were informed that the employment sector patterns (2001 – 2014) of this
District generally reflects the NI trend of a fall in both the Primary and Secondary
employment sectors, coupled with a significant increase in the tertiary sector. The
significant global decline in manufacturing has had major repercussions for the
traditional textile industrial base across the District. Current major industrial and
manufacturing employers include DuPont / Invista, Seagate, Perfecseal, LacPatrick,
McColgan Quality Foods, Boran-Mopack and O’Neills Sports Wear.

Page 21

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

An expanding tertiary sector reflects Derry’s importance as a major administrative
and service centre and provider of educational and health services. Similarly whilst
Strabane has also seen an expanding tertiary sector, the proportion remains less
than that of Derry reflecting a lesser provision of jobs in terms of central
government departments, health care and education. It is important to recognise
that the role of manufacturing is changing with, amongst others, the importance of
innovation and design, the development of products with niche markets, the
importance of knowledge-based products and processes and increased output with
less employment.
DETI forecasts that the following key sectors / markets have the potential for future
NI growth: bio-technology products including pharmaceuticals, environmentally
sustainable products including recycling activities and health-related products.
Future key growth sectors, as identified in the Derry and Strabane Draft Integrated
Economic Development Strategy, are: Advanced Manufacturing / Engineering;
Digital / Creative Industries; Life and Health Sciences; Tourism and Culture. The
same Strategy also identifies the Agri-Food, Business; Financial, Renewables, Retail
and Social Enterprise sectors as supporting the District’s economic development
with the potential to enable incremental growth.
In terms of preparing the Local Development Plan, the key instruments will be a) the
land allocations / zonings – existing and proposed, and b) the policies. Accordingly,
the Paper begins to consider how much economic development land we will
actually provide to meet the District’s needs up to 2030 and then how that land
should be strategically allocated across the main settlements.
There was consensus at the Workshop that although the current available economic
zonings are well in excess of our needs over the LDP period to 2030, it was
questionable whether these zonings were in the most sustainable / appropriate
locations when potential employee areas and public transport were factored in.
However it was recognised that it was beyond the remit of the LDP to physically
deliver improved public transport across the District. At the moment, Members’
views were that it would probably be prudent for the LDP to retain most of these
existing zones if possible, especially if they have good links to the existing transport
network. These zonings will need to be reviewed, also taking account of the views of
statutory consultees, stakeholders and the Sustainability Appraisal. Any new sites
might focus on an additional mix of sites of varying sizes in sustainable locations
and also taking into account future A2 / A5 / A6 road upgrades.
The Paper also highlights the issue of defining and controlling the range of
acceptable uses on the existing and proposed economic development areas, so as
to restrict the leisure, retail services, retailing uses, etc. in what are essentially meant
to be primarily ‘employment creation’ areas. Members need to consider the
significant implications for the amount, affordability and availability of the economic
development land, as well as for the viability and vitality of the city town centres (as
covered in another discussion paper).

Page 22

3.8

It was also considered appropriate for the LDP to carefully examine any future need
for existing / additional industrial zonings to be located adjacent to settlements
already close to ‘heavy’ industries. This was raised particularly in relation to the
Culmore / Strathfoyle & Maydown areas. Similarly, our internationally and European
protected environmental sites were identified as important and worthy of protection
in relation to any future economic zoning considerations.
3.9 Members expressed views that a number of potential options for future LDP policy
could be considered. The LDP could identify economic development areas including
opportunities for regeneration and mixed-use developments which are adjacent /
accessible to the identified deprived / disadvantaged areas within our District. This
would have the benefit of identifying suitable sites in areas where there is
acknowledged disadvantage, particularly high unemployment, in order to stimulate
enterprise. These should be well located and easily accessible. Accompanying
policies could similarly enable vacant or redundant buildings in appropriate
locations which are accessible to where people live in these wards and which would
be suitable for conversion to small business start-up workshops / skills training
workshops, in order to help stimulate local enterprise.
3.10 Potentially the greatest opportunity for economic growth across our District is in
relation to service provision. Those services, including financial and professional
services and many leisure activities for which people need to travel are best located
in our city and town centres, because these are the most accessible locations for
everyone. Therefore our LDP would support the city and town centre first approach
to policy which directs such activities to these sustainable locations within our city
and towns.
3.11 Members were also firmly of the opinion that the future LDP policy needed to be
flexible to allow an improved rural economy to develop. The ability to diversify to
enable tourism-related enterprises, business start-ups or to expand an existing rural
based industry were considered paramount to driving the vitality and viability of our
District’s extensive countryside. It was agreed that specific focus be given to this
when the LDP reviews the rural policy content in relation to PPS4 and PPS21.
3.12 Members may wish to see the POP cover more specific economic options and seek
public and stakeholder / consultee feedback on these. In this regard, the LDP would
promote a policy that zones land for economic development in order to safeguard a
long term land supply for new industry and mixed business uses and protect
existing industry land. It would also protect existing industrial uses from nonconforming uses or redevelopment proposals that could threaten the viability of an
industrial use or its future operations. It could also consider a flexible approach in
settlements by considering proposals on their merits and in relation to impact and
compatibility with the surroundings and facilitating small rural enterprises outside a
village or smaller settlement, where there is no land to accommodate them.
4

Financial, Equality, Legal, HR, Improvement and Other Implications

Page 23

4.1

There are no financial, equality, legal, HR, Improvement or other implications arising
from this report.

5 Recommendations
5.1 Members are requested to consider the possible scenarios which have been
outlined in this Paper and agree for Planning officials to proceed to develop options
in line with this Paper and in consultation with key consultees and stakeholders.
Background Papers
Appendix 1 – ‘Economic Development and the LDP’, Presented Workshop 5 - 26th
September 2016 (as updated) .

Page 24

